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1. Name of Property

historic name Hangars 4 and 5, Pope Air Force Base

other names/site number Building 708, Pope Air Force Base

2. Location

street & number  Bldg. 708, Pope AFB

LI not for publication

city, town Fayetteville

L Jvicinity

state North Carolina code NC county Cumberland

code NC 051 zip code 28308

3. Classification

Ownership of Property Category of Property
[private [ X] building(s)

] public-local [ district

[ public-State [ Isite
public-Federal [:] structure

D object

Name of related multiple property listing:
Pope Air Force Base Early Expansion

Multinle Propertv Tisting

Number of Resources within Property

Contributing Noncontributing
! O buildings
sites
structures
objects
I 0 Total

Number of contributing resources previously
listed in the National Register

4. State/Federal Agency Certification

e ™ VA

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended, | hereby certify that this
Ig’ﬁommatlon [:] request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the
National Register of Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60.
Inm inion, the property meets [_] does not meet the National Register criteria. [:}See continuation sheet.
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5. National Park Service Certification

I, hereby, certify that this property is:

{/’% [

[’ entered in the National Register. @ M
/

DSee continuation sheet.
L__]de!ermined eligible for the National

Register. [:] See continuation sheet.
[:Idetermined not eligible for the

National Register.

E] removed from the National Register.
Do(her, (explain:)

Signature of the Keeper Date of Action



6. Function or Use

Historic Functions (enter categories from instructions)
Defense - Military Facility

Current Functions (enter categories from instructions)
Defense - Military Facility

7. Description

Architectural Classification
(enter categories from instructions)

No Stvle

Materials (enter categories from instructions)

foundation Concrete

walls Metal - Steel Aluminum

Stucco (Non-Bay Areas)

roof Asphalt

other

Describe present and historic physical appearance.

Hangars 4 and 5 (Bldg. 708 at Pape &ir Force Base currently house
Baz2 Dparations, 48 well &2 storag=2 and a passeagar alrcraft tersinal

(Fig. 13Y. Bulilt in 1934,

this building has & double-bay metal super-

gtructure resting on & concrete foundation and floor. The retal-and-
asphalt shingle roof ls supported by retal bowstring trusses (Fig. 16).
The corners of the hangar are retaforced by concrete pylons with brick
and concrete heads; side walls along the east and west sides of the
hangar building are built of hollow tile masaonry. Extertor dimenstans of
the hangar building are 333.5 x 124.0 feet. The front (south) exposure

faces directly onta & taxiway apron.

Front closure for the two bays

consists of recessed canoples; back closure consists of “repeat’” panel

sliding doors (Filg. 17).

ARccording to 1934 as-built plans, the hangar bullding was designed
for air activity support, and contained storage, tollets, & locker room,
& shop, gunanery, and radio rooms for & parachute department (Fig. 18).
world War II mrodifications tncluded addition of & second story within the
eastern bay (Hangar 4y and shop areas flanklng the outside of Hangar 5;
adattion of air conditioning in the contral tower; and addition aof

mrechanicel ventilation ca.

The glass cab control tower was added

atop the east-central concrete pylan between 1934 and 1920 to support
aperations for alrborne troop training. Base Operations, & one-story

complex of offices, ticket counter,

and passenger lounge, was added in

1958 at the front of the heangar bulilding between Hangars 4 and 5 (cf.
Ftgs. 15 and 18). Repaire to the hangar canopy doors, panel sliding
doars, roof, windows, and other doorsg were &lso made &t this time.

The major archlitectural changes associated with constructian of Base
Ops involved removal of the existing transor, filling in of the transom
area with masaary, and itnstallation of new metal double-door frames at

the front of the new entrance.

The existing concrete was left in place

between' the two central hangar pylons, but the crown of the existing
pediment was removed. Modifications to Base Ops ca. 1960 inciuded
fraxing tn of the transaox above the central arch, replastering of the
arch, closing of window apenings, and lowering of the finished ceifling.
The exterior of this small building was stuccoed in 1962. A4 second story
was added to Base Ops later in the 19608, increasing its square footage

to 697 square feet,

[ESee continuation sheet
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Repairs to the hangar daor cables, electrical and mechanical
systems, drainage and plumbing, and beacon tower have contiaued since
1960. 3Srall arme storage in 1966, and an alrcraft engine and repatr shop
in 1971, were added to the outside of the hangar. & passenger sircraft
terminal, £light crew« lounge, anrd information desk were added inside
Hangar 4 after 197t. Today, Hangar J houses the pasesenger terminal &nd
crew gperations on the lnterior, and administrative, storsge, and repair
&reas on the exterlar.
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the early miltitary pertaod &t Pope Field. This building has seen unin-
terrupted usge from that time to the pregent. Its major significance lies
in Lts commerorattion af key airparne support operations flown fram Pape
Fleld during the Depresston era 4and World War II, as well &8 i1ts thematic
assoclatian with & pre-Roosevelt, Depression-era public works program for

reducing unemployment.

Enqineerinq‘Features

In additian to Lts other historical contexts, Bldg. 708 tg the anly
surviving example of bowstring truss coanstructton at Pope AFB, and
thereby documents the durability of this mode of construction at military
airfields. Bowstring truss is the original type of roof support used in
Amertcan airplane hangars. Truss construction is a simple engineering
reans of freeitng open space and achieving vertical clearance with a
ataimum of superatructure. This engtineering goal was achieved in hangar
constructlion successively by the bowstring truss (ca. 1930 - 1930), the
compression strut truss (1950 - 1935), and the bar jotst truss (late
1930s and earlty 1960sy (Len Farnung, personal cosmunication 1983). Bldg.
172, another hangsr at Pope &FB, represents the only remseining example of
compression strut truss construction at the tnstallatton. &ll of the
other hangars &t Paope AFB exhibit bar joist trusses, which were typtical
af hangar construction during the last major period of military construc-

tton and tratining at Pape.

fnather noteworthy engineering feature &ssociated with construction
of Hangars 4 and S ts the use of hollow ttle masonry, which forms the
core wall element of the non-metal parts of the bullding. 3Similar in
farm and function to hollow cancrete blocks, hollow tile its formed of
bake-molded red clay. It Ls & structural core unique to pre-1930
construction in the southeastern United States, where Lt gallowed interior
walls to expand and bresthe under canditions of high humidity (Len
Farnung, person&l comrmunicattion 1989},



8. Statement of Significance

Certifying official has considered the significance of this property in relation to other properties:

nationally [ statewide [Jiocally

Applicable National Register Criteria [X]A [ |8 [X]c []p

Criteria Considerations (Exceptions)y [ ]JA []8 [Jc [Jo [Je [Jr [Ja

Areas of Significance (enter categories from instructions) Period of Significance Significant Dates
Architecture 1934 1934
Engineering
Military

Cultural Affiliation

N/A
Significant Person Architect/Builder
N/A Unknown

State significance of property, and justify criteria, criteria considerations, and areas and periods of significance noted above.

General Statement

Hengsrs 4 and 5 (Bldg. 708 is the oldest standing aircraft butlding
at Pope &FB, and is the only surviving, early airborne support bultlding
dating to the Depression era of wilitary expansion at Pope Field. Bldg.
708 was completed in 1934 for $175,3%90.97. In conjunction with Pape
Ftald’ s ortginal (1919r rission of local reconnalssance mapping, weather
reporting, and mall sarvice, four wooden alrcraft hengars were bullt
during the 19208; hawever, these bulildings were demolished durting World
War II to allow construction of hangars that could accomrodate larger
atrcraft. & balloon hengar aggociated with the earliest airborne period
wa3 alsao dismantled in the late 1350s, leaving Bldg. 708 the only repre-
sentative of early alrcraft support at Pope Field.

Desptte the addition of a small modern additton (Base Operattoas?
between the hangars tn 19538, Bldg. 708 raintalns 1ts structural integrity.
The double-bay sheet metal frame, bowstring truss, pylon coraer supports,
canopy front doora, and sgliding panel rear doors are typical of hangar
construction and rilitary atrcraft/atrliift support butldings at
southeastern United States militery lnstallations prior ta the 19590s.

Historiéal Caontext

Pope Fleld was established by the U. 3. War Department tn 1919 to
canduct local reconnalssance rapplng, aerlal photography, arttillery
support, and other functions Lo support of an Army &rtillery regiment at
Camrp Bragg (Drucker 1989). Bldg. 708, aloag wlth an admintstrative and
resldential cantonment on the oppostte side of the airfield, was butlt
during the first of three rajor periods ailitary expansion periods at
Pope Field: the first occurred during the Great Depresaston (1933-19347,
the second durtng World War II, ead the third durtng the 1960s8. Hangars
4 &nd S represent the anly aircraft support buitlding which survives from

See continuation sheet
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[1see continuation sheet
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10. Geographical Data

Acreage of property 1.0

UTM References
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[_—_] See continuation sheet
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Verbal Boundary Description

Bldg. 708 (Hangars 4/5) is surrounded on all four sides by asphalt pavement.
The building corners define the boundaries of this property, which is situated
just southwest of Surveyor Street and north of the major taxiway/apron areas
adjoining the north side of Runway 23.05. See accompanying map for detail.

[]see continuation sheet

Boundary Justification

Architectural features defining Hangars 4/5 are bounded by the four corners
of Bldg. 708.

'[] see continuation sheet

11. Form Prepared By

nameftitte _Lesley M. Drucker, Senior Archaeologist/Susan H. Jackson, Projects Coordinator
organization __Carolina Archaeological Services date _ 11/87

street & number _1612 Westminster Drive telephone _803/254-3996

city or town Columbig state __SC zip code _29204
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